Public Document Pack

AGENDA
LICENSING COMMITTEE
Tuesday 5 April 2022 at 6.30 pm
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, TN1 1RS

Members:

Councillor Backhouse (Chairman), Councillors Allen, Atkins, Atwood, Ellis, Funnell,
Hayward, Hill, Lidstone, Pope, Roberts, Thomson (Vice-Chairman), White and
Wormington

Quorum:

4 Members

1

Chairman's Introduction (Pages 5 - 6)
Announcement on procedural matters.

2

Apologies for Absence (Pages 7 - 8)

3

Declarations of Interest (Pages 9 - 10)
To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on the agenda. For any advice
on declarations of interest, please contact the Monitoring Officer.

4

Notification of Visiting Persons wishing to speak (in accordance with Council
Procedure Rule 18 or 19): (Pages 11 - 12)
Members or members of the public should indicate which item(s) they wish to speak on and
the nature of their concern/question/request for clarification.

5

Minutes of the Previous Meeting dated 08 March 2022 (Pages 13 - 14)

6

Request for a Hackney Carriage Fare Increase (Pages 15 - 30)

7

Urgent Business (Pages 31 - 32)
To consider any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent, for the reasons to be
stated, in accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

8

Date of Next Meeting (Pages 33 - 34)

Democratic Services Team

Town Hall
ROYAL TUNBRIDGE WELLS
Kent TN1 1RS
Tel: (01892) 554413

Page 1

mod.gov app – go paperless
Easily download, annotate and keep all committee paperwork on your
mobile device using the mod.gov app – all for free!.
Visit www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp for details.

Page 2

Attending Meetings
Meetings are held in the town hall and are webcast live online.
Any member of the public may attend to watch/listen in person or online live via our website on
the relevant committee’s meeting page. A recording of the meeting will also be available shortly
after the end of the meeting.
All meetings and agenda are open to the public except where confidential information is being
discussed. The agenda of the meeting will identify whether any meeting or part of the meeting is
not open to the public and explain why.

Speaking at Meetings
Members of the public are encouraged to participate and may speak to the Council directly on
any item on the agenda for up to 3 minutes. Members of the public (and any members of the
Council who are not members of the committee) will need to register with Democratic Services
in advance. Please see the agenda item titled Notification of Persons Registered to Speak
for more details.

Coming to the Town Hall
All visitors attending a public meeting at the Town Hall should report to Reception via the side
entrance in Monson Way no earlier than 15 minutes before the start of the meeting.
Seating will be allocated on a first-come-first-serve basis. The Council may alter the number
and location of available seats if necessary on safety or public health grounds.
The public proceedings of this meeting will be recorded and made available for playback on the
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council website. Any other third party may also record or film
meetings, unless exempt or confidential information is being considered, but are requested as a
courtesy to others to give notice of this to the Clerk before the meeting. The Council is not liable
for any third party recordings.
Further details are available on the website www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/meetings or from
Democratic Services

If you require this information in another format
please contact us, call 01892 526121 or email
committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk

Page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 1

Chairman’s Introduction
For Licencing Committee on Tuesday 5 April 2022

Procedural Item
To receive any announcements on procedural matters.

Page

1 of 1

Page 5

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Chairman’s Introduction

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2

Apologies for Absence
For Licencing Committee on Tuesday 5 April 2022

Procedural Item
To receive any apologies for absence.

Page

1 of 1

Page 7

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Apologies for Absence

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

Declarations of Interest
For Licencing Committee on Tuesday 5 April 2022

Procedural Item
To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on the agenda in accordance
with the Members’ Code of Conduct. For any advice on declarations of interest, please
contact the Monitoring Officer before the meeting.

Page

1 of 1

Page 9

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Declarations of Interest

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

Notification of Persons Registered to
Speak
For Licencing Committee on Tuesday 5 April 2022

Procedural Item
To note any Visiting Members or members of the public wishing to speak, of which due
notice has been given in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 18 or 19, and which
item(s) they wish to speak on.

Information for members of the public wishing to speak.
Members of the public are encouraged to participate and those wishing to comment on an
agenda item will need to register with Democratic Services in advance. Registration opens
when the agenda is published and closes at 4pm on the last working day before the meeting.
There may be up to 4 speakers per agenda item and a maximum of 3 minutes is permitted
per speaker. Places are allocated on a first come first serve basis.
Once registered, speakers will need to attend the meeting in person. Comments should be in
the form of a statement giving your opinion on the matter. Members of the committee may
not answer questions or get into a debate with you.

Page

1 of 1

Page 11

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Notification of Persons Registered to Speak

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
1

TUNBRIDGE WELLS BOROUGH COUNCIL
LICENSING COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting held at the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge
Wells, TN1 1RS, at 6.30 pm on Tuesday, 8 March 2022
Present: Councillor Bob Backhouse (Chairman)
Councillors Allen, Atkins, Atwood, Ellis, Funnell, Pope, Roberts, White and
Wormington
Officers in Attendance: Gary Stevenson (Head of Housing, Health and
Environment), Sharon Degiorgio (Senior Licensing Officer), Robin Harris (Team
Leader (Contentious)), Helen Ward (Lawyer (Contentious)) and Louise Kellam
(Democratic Services Officer)
CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION
LC57/21

The Chairman opened the meeting, introduced Committee Members
and Officers in attendance, and outlined procedural matters of the
meeting.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
LC58/21

Apologies were received from Councillors Thomson, Hill and Lidstone.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
LC59/21

There were no declarations of interest made.

NOTIFICATION OF PERSONS REGISTERED TO SPEAK (IN ACCORDANCE
WITH COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 18 OR 19):
LC60/21

There were no visiting Members or Public registered to speak.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING DATED 30 NOVEMBER 2021
LC61/21

No amendments were proposed to the Minutes.
RESOLVED – That that the minutes of the previous meeting dated 30
November 2021 be approved as a correct record.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS SUB-COMMITTEE MEETINGS
LC62/21

No amendments were proposed to the previous Sub-Committee
hearing Minutes.
RESOLVED – That that the minutes of the previous meetings dated 5
November 2021, 23 November 2021, 1 December 2021, 20 December
2021 and 25 January 2022 be approved as correct records.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5
2

HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING: OBJECTION TO
PROPOSED LICENCE FEES AND CHARGES 2022/2023
LC63/21

Sharon Degiorgio, Senior Licensing Officer, introduced the report as
set out in the agenda
Questions and discussion from members included:
- Of the approximately 360 Consultation respondents (all drivers
and operators), there were only 2 objections.
RESOLVED – That the Officer’s recommendation of applying the
changes to Licence Fees and Charges for 2022/23 be approved.

URGENT BUSINESS
LC64/21

There was no urgent business for consideration.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
LC65/21

The next meeting of the Licensing Committee was scheduled for 28
June 2022

NOTE: The meeting concluded at 6.40 pm.

Page 14

Agenda Item 6

Request for a Hackney Carriage Fare
Increase
Licensing Committee on 5th April 2022

Summary
Lead Member: Councillor Jane March – Portfolio Holder for Environment, Culture and
Leisure
Lead Director: Paul Taylor – Director for Change and Communities
Head of Service: Gary Stevenson – Head of Housing, Health & Environment
Report Author: Sharon Degiorgio – Senior Licensing Officer
Classification: Public document (non-exempt)
Wards Affected: All
Approval Timetable
Licensing Committee
Licensing Committee

Date
5 April 2022
3 May 2022 for consideration of any
unresolved written objections

Recommendations
1. Licensing Committee consider the proposed increase in the table of fares as set out
in appendix D of the report for implementation on 27th April 2022.
2. Should Members be minded to approve the proposed fare increase, the Head of
Housing, Health and Environment be authorised to publicise this increase by way of
a Public Notice.
3. Should objections be received, this matter is brought back to this Committee for
consideration within two months of publication.

Page

1 of 6

Page 15

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Request for a Hackney Carriage Fare Increase

Agenda Item 6

1. Introduction and Background
1.1

The purpose of this report is to consider a request from a Hackney Carriage Proprietor
to increase the maximum chargeable fares payable by the travelling public for hackney
carriage journeys.

1.2

Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 provides that
a district council may fix the maximum rate of fares within the Borough and all other
charges in connection with the hire of a hackney carriage vehicle; this is done by means
of a table which is to be referred to as “the table of fares”. Private Hire vehicles can set
their own fares and are therefore not the subject of this report.

1.3

Any changes to the table of fares must be decided by the Licensing Committee and a
notice must be published in accordance with s.65 setting out a period of not less than
fourteen days to allow for objections to be made. In the event that any objections are
received within the period specified, and not withdrawn, the Council must set a further
date not later than two months after the first specified date (being the last date for
objections) for the table of fares to come into effect with or without modifications as
described by them.

1.4

The powers to set a maximum fare were considered by the Office of Fair Trading in its
report in November 2003. The Government in its response to the report made it clear
that it recognised that there was a strong case of negotiating the maximum level of
fares in order to protect the interests of the consumers and recommended that local
authorities should continue to exercise these powers.

1.5

The Private Hire Monthly magazine publishes a league table which ranks all the
Councils in England and Wales in accordance with the cost of a 2-mile hackney fare on
Tariff 1. Tunbridge Wells Borough Council is currently 22 out of a total of 355 councils.
Should the proposed increase be approved TWBC will be 8th out of the 355 councils.
Resulting in this Authority having the most expensive taxi fares in Kent.

1.6

The last rise in maximum fares took effect on 1st April 2019.

1.7

The proprietor, Clayton Berry is suggesting the review and his proposals are set out at
appendices A, B, C & D. The rationale for the request is as follows:The rising cost of living;
Fuel prices;
Cost of vehicle insurance going up due to Government increasing insurance
premium tax;
Vehicle licence fees: and
Road tax increasing every year;

Page

2 of 6

Page 16

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Request for a Hackney Carriage Fare Increase

Agenda Item 6
1.8

The suggested proposals equates to a 20% increase on tariffs 1 and 2.

1.9

The additional passenger capacity charge from 2 to 4 passengers equates to a 150%
increase.

1.10 The spoilage charge increase equates to a 17.65% increase.
1.11 According to the AA fuel price reports for February 2022, the South East has recorded

the highest price for unleaded at 149.2p/litre and Diesel at 152.8p/litre. Since then
prices have increased significantly as a result of the conflict in Ukraine, however the
government announced a reduction in fuel duty of 5 pence per litre on 23 rd March 2022
to offset some of the rising costs.
1.12 The increase is in response to rising inflationary, fuel and running costs and is

considered reasonable. Many local authorities have received requests to increase
fares, this has included 2 from the Licensing Partnership, namely Sevenoaks District
and Maidstone Borough Council’s.
1.13 It is accepted practice nationally that when determining fares, the initial hire charge can

be modified.

2. Options Considered
2.1

An increase to the initial hiring charge for tariffs 1 and 2

2.2

Change additional passenger capacity charge from 2 passengers to 4 passengers and
increase these charges by 30p to 50p

2.3

Remove the weekend surcharge

2.4

Increase the maximum spoilage charge; or

2.5

To propose no changes to the existing fares

3. Preferred Option and Reason
2.6

That Members consider the contents of the report and determine whether the fare
increase should be granted.

2.7

The setting of fares is a statutory power available to the Council and it is the Council’s
responsibility to strike a balance between setting a fare that is acceptable to the
customer and to the taxi driver.

2.8

It is important that the Council through its licensing functions protects the public by
ensuring that the fares charged by licensed Hackney Carriages are fair and justified
and not excessive.

2.9

The last fare increase was 2019

Page

3 of 6

Page 17

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Request for a Hackney Carriage Fare Increase

Agenda Item 6
3. Consultation on Options
3.1 If the increase as detailed in the report is approved, a notice must be published in a
local newspaper giving at least 14 days for objections to be received. If no objections,
the proposed fare increase takes effect on the last date for objections to be made as
specified in the publication. The Licensing team will notify the trade where we have up
to date email addresses.

4. Implementation
4.1

If no objections, the proposed fare increase takes effect on the date specified on the
notice.

4.2

Once the fares have been set, the meter should be set to the agreed rate by an
approved installer at a cost to the proprietor/driver.

4.3

Should objections be received, this matter is brought back to this Committee for
consideration within two months of the last date for objections to be made as specified
in the publication.

5. Appendices and Background Documents
Appendices:
•

Appendix A: Hackney Carriage (HC) Fare increase request email 07.03.22

•

Appendix B: Hackney Carriage (HC) Fare increase request email 20.03.22

•

Appendix C: Hackney Carriage (HC) Fare increase PDF 20.03.22

•

Appendix D: Hackney Carriage Fare increase request in a table format.

Background document:
•

Private Hire and Taxi monthly fare league tables: https://www.phtm.co.uk/taxi-faresleague-tables

•

Fuel prices
http://www.theaa.com/driving-advice/driving-costs/fuel-prices

•

https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/inflationandpriceindices/bulletins/consumerpriceinflation
/february2022#:~:text=The%20Consumer%20Prices%20Index%20(CPI,of%200.1%25%2
0in%20February%202021.

•

https://tunbridgewells.gov.uk/licensing/taxis-and-private-hire/taxi-fares/hackney-carriagefares

Page

4 of 6

Page 18

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Request for a Hackney Carriage Fare Increase

Agenda Item 6
6. Cross Cutting Issues
A. Legal (including the Human Rights Act)
Local authorities have a discretionary power to determine Hackney Carriage fares, under
s.65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.
When a district council make or vary a table of fares they shall publish, in at least one local
newspaper circulating in the district, a Notice setting out the table of fares or the variation
thereof and specifying the period, which shall not be less than 14 days from the date of the
first publication of the Notice, within which objections to the table of fares or variation can be
made.
If no objection to a table of fares or variation is duly made within the period specified in the
Notice, or if all objections so made are withdrawn, the table of fares or variations shall come
into operation on the date of the expiration of the period specified in the notice, or the date of
withdrawn of the objection or, if more than one, of the last objection, whichever date is the
later.
If any objection is duly made the Council shall set a further date, not later than two months
after the first specified date on which the table of fares shall come into force with or without
modifications as decided by them after consideration of the objections.
There is no right of appeal against the fares once set.
Helen Ward, Mid Kent Legal Services Lawyer (Contentious), 25.03.2022

B. Finance and Other Resources
No implications for the Council, however there may to passengers, proprietors and possibly
drivers of Hackney Carriages
Sharon Degiorgio, Senior Licensing Officer, 25.03.2022

C. Staffing
The report does not propose any changes to staffing
Sharon Degiorgio, Senior Licensing Officer, 25.03.2022

D. Risk Management
No risks identified
Sharon Degiorgio, Senior Licensing Officer, 25.03.2022

Page

5 of 6

Page 19

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Request for a Hackney Carriage Fare Increase

Agenda Item 6
E. Environment and Sustainability
No issues identified.
Sharon Degiorgio, Senior Licensing Officer, 25.03.2022

F. Community Safety
No issues identified. The provision of licensed hackney carriages allows the public to travel in
safety. This reduces both the opportunity for crime and the fear of crime
Sharon Degiorgio, Senior Licensing Officer, 25.03.2022

G. Equalities
It is important that the Council, through its licensing functions, protects the public by ensuring
that the fares charged by the licensed hackney carriages are fair and justified and not
excessive.
Sharon Degiorgio, Senior Licensing Officer, 25.03.2022

H. Data Protection
No issues identified.
Sharon Degiorgio, Senior Licensing Officer, 25.03.2022

I. Health and Safety
No issues identified.
Sharon Degiorgio, Senior Licensing Officer, 25.03.2022

J. Health and Wellbeing
No issues identified.
Sharon Degiorgio, Senior Licensing Officer, 25.03.2022

Page

6 of 6

Page 20

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Request for a Hackney Carriage Fare Increase

Appendix A
From: Clayton Berry
Sent: 07 March 2022 17:02
To: Sharon Degiorgio <Sharon.Degiorgio@Tunbridgewells.gov.uk>
Subject: An urgent fare increase
Dear Sharon
Hope you are well?
Because the unsure times that we are in with cost of living going up and oil prices going up, it's left
me no option to ask for an urgent fare increase.
I have made some changes that all fares go up by 80p ie £4.80 start and fare and half starts at £6.80.
The weekend surcharge has been abolished so no more.
The 20p surcharge per person over two has been changed to to 50p per person over four so MPV
which use more fuel are not penalise anymore.
The spoilage charge upto £100 has Cost gone up.
I have add ulez into charges that can be pass over.
Regards
Clayton Berry
07790989470

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix B
From: Clayton Berry
Sent: 20 March 2022 14:10
To: Sharon Degiorgio <Sharon.Degiorgio@Tunbridgewells.gov.uk>
Subject: Hackney carriage fare proposal 2022
Dear Sharon
Hope this attachment works.
I have noted a few things down what we will charge 2019
Diesel was £1.189 today £1.829 cheapest in town source RAC
Hackney yearly cost £375 includes MOT
From April £300.50 plus MOT £420.50
Operators licence 5 years £516 from April £593

Hope this is ok.
Regards
Clayton Berry

Page 23

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix C

Previous Fares

FLAG

For the first 8/10
For the first 8/10
mile (1,408 yards)
mile (1,408 yards)
whilst in motion, the whilst in motion, the
first ten minutes
first ten minutes
whilst stationary or a whilst stationary or a
combination of both: combination of both:
£4.00

Per mile

Proposed Fares

£4.80

For each 135.38
For each 135.38
yards whilst in
yards whilst in
motion, each 40
motion, each 40
seconds whilst
seconds whilst
stationary or a
stationary or a
combination of both. combination of both.
Whilst in motion, this Whilst in motion, this
equates to
equates to
approximately £2.60 approximately £2.60
per mile:
per mile:
£0.20

£0.20

1 Mile

£4.40

£5.20

2 Mile

£7.00

£7.80

Tariff 2

Any time between
11:30pm and 6am /
any time on a public
holiday / any time
after 6pm on either
Christmas Eve or
New Year’s Eve.

Any time between
11:30pm and 6am /
any time on a public
holiday / any time
after 6pm on either
Christmas Eve or
New Year’s Eve.

Initial charge

Initial charge

For the first 8/10
For the first 8/10
mile (1,408 yards)
mile (1,408 yards)
whilst in motion, the whilst in motion, the

Page 25

Appendix C
first ten minutes
first ten minutes
whilst stationary or a whilst stationary or a
combination of both: combination of both:
£6.00

Subsequent charges

£6.80

For each 135.38
For each 135.38
yards whilst in
yards whilst in
motion, each 40
motion, each 40
seconds whilst
seconds whilst
stationary or a
stationary or a
combination of both.
combination of both.
Whilst in motion, this
Whilst in motion, this
equates to
equates to
approximately £3.90
approximately £3.90
per mile:
per mile:
£0.30

Tariff 3

£0.30

Tariff 3 - may be Tariff 3 - may be
charged for any
charged for any
hiring
hiring
commencing:
commencing:
Any time on
Christmas Day / any
time on New Year's
Day.

Any time on
Christmas Day / any
time on New Year's
Day.

Initial charge

Initial charge

For the first 8/10
For the first 8/10
mile (1,408 yards)
mile (1,408 yards)
whilst in motion, the whilst in motion, the
first ten minutes
first ten minutes
whilst stationary or a whilst stationary or a
combination of both: combination of both:
£8.00

£8.00

Subsequent charges Subsequent charges
For each 135.38
yards whilst in
motion, each 40

For each 135.38
yards whilst in
motion, each 40

Page 26

Appendix C
seconds whilst
seconds whilst
stationary or a
stationary or a
combination of both. combination of both.
Whilst in motion, this Whilst in motion, this
equates to
equates to
approximately £5.20 approximately £5.20
per mile:
per mile:
£0.40

£0.40

above rate of fare
For hiring’s on Saturdays &
Sundays per fare beginning
between 06:00 hours and
24:00 hours.

For the carriage of more than Additional
2 passengers up to the
passengers
maximum capacity of the
carriage

This is changing

Per person in excess
of two passengers,
excluding children
under one year of
age:
£0.20

Vehicle spoilage charge

Congestion charges, tolls
and car parking

£0.00surcharge
on each fare
This can be taken off

£0.80 surcharge
on each fare

Additional
passengers
Per person in excess
of Four passengers,
excluding children
under one year of
age:
£0.50

£85.00

£100.00

Congestion charges,
tolls and car parking
incurred during hiring
Any charges(s) detailed
above,
incurred as a result of
a passenger’s
instruction may be
added to the fare.

Congestion
charges,Ulez, tolls and
car parking incurred
during hiring Any
charges(s) detailed
above,
incurred as a result of
a passenger’s
instruction may be
added to the fare.

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix D

Appendix D

Request in table format
Current charge
Tariff 1 - 4.00
Tariff 2 - 6.00
Tariff 3 - 8.00

Proposed charge/variation
4.80
6.80
No change to current charge

£0.80

Surcharge to be removed

£0.20

In excess of 4 passengers and
also an increase to £0.50

Maximum Spoilage Charge

£85.00

£100.00

Congestion charges, tolls
and car parking incurred
during hiring
Any charges(s) detailed above,
incurred as a result of a
passenger’s instruction may be
added to the fare.

Congestion charges, tolls
and car parking incurred
during hiring

To include ULEZ

Initial Charge
For the first 8/10 mile (1,408
yards) whilst in motion, the first
10 minutes whilst stationary or
a combination of both.
Weekend Hiring
For any hiring commencing at
any time Saturday and any
time Sunday or Monday before
06:00
Additional passengers
Per person in excess of 2
passengers, excluding children
under 1 year of age

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

Urgent Business
For Licencing Committee on Tuesday 5 April 2022

Procedural Item
To consider any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent, for the reasons to be
stated, in accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

Page

1 of 1

Page 31

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Urgent Business

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

Date of the Next Meeting
For Licencing Committee on Tuesday 5 April 2022

Procedural Item
To note that the next scheduled meeting is Tuesday 28 June 2022.

Page

1 of 1

Page 33

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
Date of the Next Meeting

This page is intentionally left blank

